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MEMORANDUM 

To: Planning Board 
From: Juliet T.H. Walker, Planning Director 

Jillian Harris, Planner 1 
Subject: Addendum to Staff Recommendations for the August 20, 2020 Planning Board 

Meeting 
Date: 8/19/2020 
 
 
VI. PRELIMINARY CONCEPTUAL CONSULTATION 

 
B. The request of the SB & NA Stokel Trust and Philip Stokel, Owners, for property 

located at 83 Peverly Hill Road for Preliminary Conceptual Consultation for a 60-unit 
Open Space Planned Unit Development (OSPUD).  Said property is shown on Assessor 
Map 242 Lot 4 and lies within the Single Residence A (SRA) District. 

 

 
 

Description 
Mr. Stokel has a prospective buyer for this property who is interested in constructing 
approximately 60 units that would include approximately 4,000 feet of roadway.  The 
prospective buyer is asking for the Planning Board to recognize the original agreement 
and affirm whether the length of this proposed road is acceptable and in conformity with 
the original settlement. After consultation with the Planning Director, the City Attorney 
has advised the buyer’s attorney that the best mechanism for this review by the Planning 
Board would be through preliminary conceptual consultation. 
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Previous Planning Board Action 
On April 30, 2015, the Planning Board considered a request from the City (as described 
in a memorandum from the City’s Legal Department dated March 30, 2015) to approve 
one element of a settlement in a court case. The case pertained to the taking of a parcel 
of land in connection with the construction of the Route 33 bridge over the former 
Hampton Branch railroad line. The property owners had argued that the taking deprived 
them of a second access to the lot and thereby reduced its development potential. The 
City disputed this and prevailed in initial appeals. However, in order to avoid the cost of 
litigation and the potential risk associated with it, the Legal Department negotiated a 
compromise under which the owners would refrain from further appeals if granted a 
waiver from the Subdivision Regulations requiring a maximum of 500-foot on the length 
of a cul-de-sac.  
 
The requested waiver was unusual in two respects. First, it was not attached to any 
specific development plan, but rather would open up the possibility for the current 
owners or any future owners to submit a subdivision or PUD plan showing a longer cul-
de-sac road than allowed by the Subdivision Rules and Regulations. Thus, the Planning 
Board did not have a plan to review in connection with the request at that time. Second, 
the waiver would expire after 10 years if no development plan is submitted within that 
time period. 
 
On April 30, 2015, the Board voted to waive in its entirety the 500 foot cul-de-sac 
limitation found in Section VI.3.I of the Subdivision Rules and Regulations for the 
property located at 83 Peverly Hill Road (Map 242, Lot 4); subject to any owner/applicant 
otherwise obtaining all other approvals and permits from local land use boards as may 
be necessary to develop the property. The decision stipulated that the waiver would run 
with the land and shall be effective for any subdivision application submitted to the 
Planning Board within ten (10) years of the date of approval of the waiver. 
 
Preliminary Conceptual Consultation 
As authorized by NH RSA 676:4,II, the Site Plan Review Regulations require preliminary 
conceptual consultation for certain proposals, including (1) the construction of 30,000 sq. 
ft. or more gross floor area, (2) the creation of 20 or more dwelling units, or (3) the 
construction of more than one principal structure on a lot.  Preliminary conceptual 
consultation precedes review by the Technical Advisory Committee. 
 
Preliminary conceptual consultation is described in the state statute as follows: 
 
[Preliminary conceptual consultation]… shall be directed at review of the basic concept 
of the proposal and suggestions which might be of assistance in resolving problems with 
meeting requirements during final consideration. Such consultation shall not bind either 
the applicant or the board and statements made by planning board members shall not 
be the basis for disqualifying said members or invalidating any action taken. The board 
and the applicant may discuss proposals in conceptual form only and in general terms 
such as desirability of types of development and proposals under the master plan. 
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The preliminary conceptual consultation phase provides the Planning Board with an 
opportunity to review the outlines of a proposed project before it gets to detailed design 
(and before the applicant refines the plan as a result of review by the Technical Advisory 
Committee and public comment at TAC hearings). In order to maximize the value of this 
phase, Board members are encouraged to engage in dialogue with the proponent to 
offer suggestions and to raise any concerns so that they may be addressed in a formal 
application. Preliminary conceptual consultation does not involve a public hearing, and 
no vote is taken by the Board on the proposal at this stage. Unlike Design Review, 
completion of Preliminary Conceptual Consultation does not vest the project to the 
current zoning. 
 
 

 














